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Introduction 

Following is Management’s Discussion and Analysis of the financial activities of Oakland University 

(University, Oakland or OU) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 with selected comparative 

information for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015.   

 

The University is a state-supported institution of over 20,000 students offering a diverse set of academic 

programs, from baccalaureate to doctoral levels, as well as programs in continuing education.  The 

University is recognized as one of the country’s 112 doctoral/research universities by the Carnegie 

Foundation for the Advancement of Teaching.  The University currently offers 132 baccalaureate degree 

programs and 138 graduate and certificate programs.  The University’s student-centered education offers 

students opportunities to work directly on research projects with expert faculty who bring current 

knowledge into the classroom.   

 

The University is considered a component unit of the State of Michigan (State).  Accordingly, the 

University’s financial statements are included in the State’s comprehensive annual financial report.  

  

This analysis is designed to focus on current financial activities; it should be read in conjunction with the 

University’s financial statements and footnotes to the financial statements.  This discussion, financial 

statements, and related footnotes have been prepared by and are the responsibility of University 

management. 

 

Fiscal Year 2017 Enrollment and Operations Highlights 

 In fiscal year 2017, student headcount enrollment for the fall 2016 semester decreased 1.2% to 

20,012.  This was offset by a 2,062 increase in credit hours for the Fall 2016 and Winter 2017 

semesters. Undergraduate enrollment was 16,568 (83%) and graduate enrollment was 3,444 (17%). 

 

 Enrollment based on Fiscal Year Equated Students (FYES) increased 0.1% to 17,862. This represents 

the 23rd straight year of FYES enrollment growth. 

A five-year summary of historical enrollment is presented below. 
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 Forbes listed Oakland University among the top universities in Michigan. Oakland was the fourth 

highest rated public university in Michigan and first of all schools in Oakland, Macomb and 

Wayne Counties. OU was also ranked in the top 200 in US public colleges and US research 

universities.  

 

 In June 2017, The National Council for Home Safety and Security ranked Oakland University the 

third safest large university in the US. The criteria used in their rankings include violent crimes, 

violations of the Violence Against Women Act, total arrests, and local crimes. Data used in the 

study came from the FBI’s Uniform Crime Report and the National Center for Education 

Statistics. 

 

 Oakland University’s School of Business Administration was named in the Princeton Review’s 

list of the best business schools. According to Robert Franek, Princeton Review Senior VP-

Publisher, Oakland is one of the top schools to earn an MBA. Methodology used in the rankings 

includes school reported data as well as surveys of students.  

 

 In May 2017, the Board of Trustees voted unanimously to appoint Ora Hirsch Pescovitz, M.D., as 

Oakland University’s seventh president. Dr. Pescovitz previously worked as Senior Vice 

President and U.S. Medical Leader at Eli Lilly and Company. Her distinguished career in higher 

education includes service as the University of Michigan’s first female Executive Vice President 

for Medical Affairs and Health System Chief Executive Officer (CEO), as well as a 21-year 

career in various roles at Indiana University, and President and CEO of Riley Hospital for 

Children. 

 

 Oakland University’s School of Engineering and Computer Science is a top producer of workers 

on self-driving, autonomous, vehicles. In May 2017, The San Francisco Business Times reported 

about 1.75% of all engineering jobs on autonomous vehicles are being filled by Oakland 

graduates, making it the fifth highest producer of workers in the field.  

 

 In April 2017, Oakland University broke ground on expansion of the Oakland Center. The 

expansion will add 60,000 square feet to the building’s existing 140,000 square foot frame. The 

$46.6 million project is financed by a combination of general revenue bonds and a public-private 

partnership with Chartwells. The project is expected to be completed by Fall 2018.  

 

 Oakland University’s Project Upward Bound has been awarded a $3 million grant by the 

Department of Education. Project Upward Bound prepares high school students from Pontiac and 

Oak Park for college success in summer academies and academic year programs. Funding will be 

used to implement academic, social, cultural, and career programming that focuses on 

empowering participants to earn postsecondary degrees. 

 

 Oakland University’s Biology Department received a grant of approximately $1 million to 

research a deadly amphibian disease. The National Science Foundation awarded Dr. Thomas 

Raffel the grant for his research on the effects of temperature variation on fungus diseases. The 

infectious disease has been linked to mass amphibian deaths and extinctions throughout the 

world. 
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 Oakland University now offers a Master’s program in Cyber Security which is the first of its kind 

in Michigan. Dr. Huirong Fu, professor and program coordinator, says the goal of the program is 

to provide students knowledge in theory and practice that helps them understand and develop 

techniques to confront new threats. Cyber security is a fast growing field as cybercrimes have 

affected 71 million Americans and cost $110 billion in recent years.  

 

 The Southern Student Housing Complex is well on its way to being completed for the Fall 2018 

semester. The $78 million residence hall will span 289,000 square feet and is financed by the 

issuance of general revenue bonds. The complex is being designed and constructed in accordance 

with Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design (LEED) Gold Standards to ensure the 

residence hall is environmentally conscious.  

 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

This annual report consists of financial statements which have been prepared in accordance with the 

“business-type” activities requirements of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 

No. 34, Basic Financial Statements-and Management’s Discussion and Analysis-for State and Local 

Governments, and GASB Statement No. 35, Basic Financial Statements and Management’s Discussion 

and Analysis for Public Colleges and Universities.  The fundamental objective of the financial statements 

is to provide an overview of the University’s economic condition.  The statements and their primary 

purpose are discussed below. 

 Statement of Net Position  This statement presents information on the University’s assets, deferred 

outflows, liabilities, deferred inflows, and net position (assets plus deferred outflows less liabilities 

and deferred inflows) as of the end of the fiscal year.  Net position is displayed in four components – 

net investment in capital assets; restricted nonexpendable; restricted expendable; and unrestricted.  

Net position is one indicator of the current financial condition of the University, while the change in 

net position serves as a useful indicator of whether the financial position is improving or 

deteriorating.   

 Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position  This statement presents the operating 

results of the University, as well as nonoperating revenues and expenses.  The statement also presents 

information that shows how the University’s net position has changed during the fiscal year. 

 Statement of Cash Flows  This statement presents information about the University’s cash receipts 

and cash payments during its fiscal year. Cash activities are classified in the following categories:  

operating activities, noncapital financing activities, capital financing activities, and investing 

activities. 

The University’s financial statements can be found on pages 15, 16, and 17 of this financial report. 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

The footnotes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided 

in the financial statements.  The University’s notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 18-

45 of this financial report. 
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University Financial Statement Summaries 

University Statements of Net Position 

The University’s net position is summarized in the following Condensed Statements of Net Position: 

 

The University’s total assets were $966.1 million and $940.4 million at June 30, 2017 and 2016, 

respectively.  The University’s largest asset is its investment in capital assets, including land, land 

improvements, infrastructure, buildings, equipment, library acquisitions, and construction in progress.  

Capital assets represent 56% and 53% of the University’s total assets at June 30, 2017 and 2016, 

respectively.  Capital expenditures totaled $61.2 million in 2017 and $33.8 million in 2016.  Included in 

capital expenditures for 2017 were the Southern Student Housing Complex, expansion of the Oakland 

Center, Vandenberg Hall infrastructure improvements, and parking expansion projects. Additional capital 

expenditures include completion of a cogeneration system at the University’s Central Heating Plant, a 

project consisting of constructing and installing a combined heat and power cogeneration system to 

provide a significant reduction in the University’s future energy costs, campus infrastructure projects, and 

other campus enhancement projects. Depreciation expense was $22.9 million in 2017 and $22.0 million in 

2016. 

 

Current assets consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents and receivables due within one year.  Cash 

and cash equivalents increased $17.5 million to $81.0 million at June 30, 2017 largely due to an increase 

in investment income, coupled with Summer Session II tuition payments due June 29th, and an increase in 

accounts payable. Accounts receivable decreased $1.3 million to $11.0 million at June 30, 2017. This is 

largely due to a $1.7 million increase in the Allowance for Doubtful Accounts from continued aging of 

older receivables, offset with an increase of $0.4 million in other related receivables. Other current assets 

of $14.9 million include a State operating appropriation receivable of $9.1 million, pledges receivable of 

$2.8 million, $1.4 million in deposits, and $1.3 million in inventory. 

 

Condensed Statements of Net Position June 30,   

  2017  2016  Change 

  (in thousands)   

Assets       

Current assets  $  81,043  $   63,537  28% 

Capital assets, net  538,937  500,924  8% 

Other noncurrent assets  346,114  375,913  -8% 

            Total assets  966,094  940,374  3% 

 

Deferred outflows of resources 

  

11,637 

  

15,835 

  

-27% 

       

Liabilities       

Current liabilities  72,462  62,644  16% 

Noncurrent liabilities  394,153  404,678  -3% 

            Total liabilities  466,615  467,322  0% 

       

Net position       

Net investment in capital assets  269,215  262,726  2% 

Restricted nonexpendable  28,084  26,926  4% 

Restricted expendable  43,762  37,561  17% 

Unrestricted  170,055  161,674  5% 

            Total net position  $ 511,116  $ 488,887  5% 



Oakland University 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2017 and 2016 

5 

 

Other noncurrent assets consist primarily of restricted cash and cash equivalents, endowment and other 

long-term investments.  Restricted Cash decreased $37.9 million due to major construction related 

expenditures incurred during the year. Endowment investments were $91.6 million at June 30, 2017 and 

$82.0 million at June 30, 2016.  The increase in the endowment fair market value was due to favorable 

outcomes in the market and generous contributions.  The total return, net of fees, on the University’s 

endowment investments was 12.4% for 2017 and -1.4% for 2016. Other long-term investments were 

$147.3 million at June 30, 2017 and $146.4 million at June 30, 2016, and include fixed income and equity 

securities. The increase is attributed to favorable market returns and a long term investment strategy. The 

total return on the University’s other long-term investments was 3.5% for 2017 and 2016, net of fees. The 

University’s investments are being managed according to Board of Trustees (Board) policies. 

 

Deferred outflows of resources were $11.6 million at June 30, 2017 and $15.8 million as of June 30, 

2016. Deferred outflows of resources consists of the accumulated change in fair value of the 2008 Swap, 

early extinguishment of debt, and the deferral of swap termination costs for the 2001 Bonds. The increase 

in the deferred outflows of resources is primarily due to the fair market value of the 2008 Swap. 

 

All investments held by the University can be liquidated to cash within 90 days or less without incurring 

additional fees, with the exception of the private equity holding and hedge funds. 

 

The University’s total liabilities were $466.6 million at June 30, 2017 and $467.3 million at June 30, 

2016.  Current liabilities consist primarily of accounts payable, accrued expenses, current portion of long-

term liabilities, and unearned revenue. Of the $9.9 million increase in current liabilities, $2.0 million is 

due to a pass through payment to Beaumont Health from insurance providers; a $1.9 million increase in 

deferred revenue due to fiscal year 2018 tuition payments that were due June 29th; and an increase of $5.8 

million in accounts payable due to increased supplier obligations and construction activity at year end 

compared to June 30, 2016.  Noncurrent liabilities are comprised primarily of bonds and notes payable 

and represent 80% of the University’s total liabilities as of June 30, 2017 and 82% as of June 30, 2016.  

Noncurrent long-term liabilities decreased by $10.5 million largely due to a $9.5 million decrease in long 

term liabilities related to bond principal payments and amortization of bond premiums. An additional 

decrease of $3.9 million was recognized in derivative instruments consisting of the accumulated change 

in fair value of the 2008 Swap. These decreases were offset by an increase in other postemployment 

benefits (OPEB) obligation by $2.2 million as result of actuarial studies used to determine the cost of the 

current retiree health insurance benefit program.  
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The following graph shows net position by classification and restriction: 

 

 

 

The University’s net position consists of net investment in capital assets, restricted and unrestricted.  

Restricted expendable net position represents assets whose use is restricted by a party independent of the 

University, including restrictions related to grants, contracts, and gifts.  Restricted nonexpendable net 

position consists of gifts that have been received for endowment purposes.  Unrestricted net position 

represents assets of the University that have not been restricted by parties independent of the University. 

Unrestricted net position includes funds the Board and University management have designated for 

specific purposes, as well as amounts that have been contractually committed for goods and services that 

have not been received as of the end of the fiscal year.   

The following summarizes the internal designations of unrestricted net position:  

  June 30, 

  2017  2016 

  (in thousands) 

     

Auxiliary enterprises  $     4,012  $     3,620 

Capital projects and repair reserves  50,690  51,409 

Funds designated for departmental use  35,387  32,675 

Funds functioning as endowments  18,052  16,733 

Gifts and investment income reserves  39,833  36,320 

Retirement and insurance reserves  8,951  6,984 

Encumbrances and carryforwards  13,129  13,933 

Total Unrestricted Net Position  $ 170,054  $ 161,674 
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Auxiliary enterprises consist of operating fund balances at year end for the various auxiliary units, the 

largest of which are University Housing, Meadow Brook Hall, Golf & Learning Center, and Oakland 

Center.  

 

Capital projects and repair reserves consist of the unexpended portion of ongoing capital projects, 

reserves for plant renewal, and bond sinking funds.   

 

Funds designated for departmental use consist of specific projects earmarked by various departments.   

 

Funds functioning as endowments were created by the Board utilizing University resources.  These funds 

are invested in the endowment pool to achieve long-term growth.  The funds consist of endowments for 

scholarships, excellence in teaching and research, and deferred plant renewal.   

 

Gifts and investment income reserves include the University’s unrestricted gifts, and realized and 

unrealized investment income reserves.  The increase for 2017 is predominately attributable to investment 

earnings. 

 

Retirement and insurance reserves include the University’s reserves and liability recorded to date for 

OPEB. The University has an actuarial accrued liability (AAL) of $39.9 million as of June 30, 2017.  The 

amount of the AAL that is recorded on the financial statements increased $2.2 million during the year to 

$15.5 million.  In addition to the recorded liability, the University had an unrecorded AAL of $24.4 

million. The University has decided that future benefits will not be prefunded; however, the University 

has designated assets to meet future obligations through the creation of a Board-approved, quasi-

endowment valued at approximately $22.8 million, earnings from which will be used to offset annual 

postemployment contributions. In June 2015, the GASB issued Statement No. 75, Accounting and 

Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions.  The date of adoption is for the 

fiscal year ending June 30, 2018, with earlier adoption encouraged.   GASB Statement No. 75 will require 

the unrecorded OPEB liability of $24.4 million, which is currently disclosed in the footnotes, to be 

recorded on the face of the financial statements in the year of implementation.   

 

The retirement and insurance balance also includes reserves for unemployment and workers’ 

compensation for which the University is self-insured. 

 

Encumbrances represent financial commitments (i.e. purchase order) for which the ordered items have not 

been received or paid by fiscal year end.  Carryforwards are funds for departmental use in the upcoming 

fiscal year for which financial commitments have not been executed but have been planned. 
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University Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

 

The University’s revenues, expenses, and changes in net position are summarized in the following 

Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position: 

 

 

 

Operating revenues were $263.5 million in 2017, $254.0 million in 2016, and $227.4 million in 2015.  

The 4% increase in 2017 over 2016 was primarily due to increases in tuition revenue net of scholarship 

allowances, which was higher due to an increase in student credit hours and tuition rates increasing by an 

average 3.9% for undergraduates and graduates.  

The University earned $17.3 million in net investment income.  This growth is comprised of $7.2 million, 

a 3.5% rate of return, in University pooled working capital investments and $10.1 million, a 12.4% rate of 

return, in the endowment investments. 

Operating expenses were $326.6 million in 2017, $316.7 million in 2016, and $298.3 million in 2015.  

The operating expense increase of 3% in 2017 over 2016 primarily resulted from supporting contractual 

agreements and increases in instruction, academic support, and student services.   

 

 

Condensed Statements of Revenues, 

Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 2017 

 

2016            2015  

% Change 

2017-2016 

 % Change 

2016-2015 

   (in thousands)    

Operating revenues         

Net tuition $ 207,392  $ 200,021  $ 179,164  4% 12%  

Grants and contracts 11,346  11,467  11,467  -1% 0%  

Departmental activities 12,488  11,137  8,748  12% 27%  

Auxiliary activities, net 32,024  30,932  27,758  4% 11%  

Other 202  421  248  -52% 70%  

          Total operating revenues 263,452  253,978  227,385  4% 12%  

          

Operating expenses 326,619  316,690  298,281  3% 6%  

          Operating loss (63,167)  (62,712)  (70,896)  1% -12%  

          

Nonoperating revenues (expenses)          

State appropriations 49,921  48,372  48,384  3% 0%  

Gifts 4,517  4,516  4,673  0% -3%  

Investment income, net 17,303  4,815  6,768  259% -29%  

Interest expense (8,304)  (8,683)  (8,994)  -4%  -3%  

Pell grants 20,758  20,845  21,879  0% -5%  

Other (108)  (232)  22  -53% -1,155%  

          Net nonoperating revenues 84,087  69,633  72,732  21% -4%  

          Income before other revenues 20,920  6,921  1,836  202% 277%  

          

Capital appropriations 162  1,857  16,603  -91% -89%  

Capital grants and gifts 63  16  253  294% -94%  

Additions to permanent endowments 1,084  932  1,630  16% -43%  

          Total other revenues 1,309  2,805  18,486  -53% -85%  

          Increase in net position 22,229  9,726  20,322  129% -52%  

          

Net position          

Beginning of year 488,887  479,161  458,839  2% 4%  

End of year $ 511,116  $ 488,887  $ 479,161  5% 2%  
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A breakdown of the University’s operating expenses by functional classification follows: 

University Operating Expenses 

 

Education and general expenses increased 3% in 2017 over 2016 and 6% in 2016 over 2015.  The 

increases are mainly attributable to an increase in academic program offerings to meet the needs of 

increased student credit hours, contractual agreements, and equipment purchases related to the 

University’s capital and technology expansion programs. 

Instruction for 2017 increased  by $1.4 million largely due to an increase in compensation of $2.7 million 

due to the hiring of 9 new faculty positions and overall compensation increases for existing faculty offset 

by a $1.0 million decrease in supplies and services. The Academic Support increase is predominantly due 

to an increase of $3.9 million in compensation and $2.3 million in technology upgrades offset by a $0.6 

million decrease in equipment purchases. The increase in Student Services is related to an increase of $2.0 

million in compensation increases and the hiring of academic advisors and counselors, coupled with a 

$0.7 million Advertising & Marketing expense targeting undergrads.  The increase in Depreciation for 

2017 is largely due to the completion of projects and equipment purchases placed into service during 

2017. 

The University’s operating loss was $63.2 million in 2017, $62.7 million in 2016, and $70.9 million in 

2015.  Offsetting these losses were net nonoperating revenues of $84.1 million in 2017, $69.6 million in 

2016, and $72.7 million in 2015. 

Nonoperating revenue is largely comprised of State appropriations and, as reflected in the State’s 

approved appropriation bills, was $49.9 million in 2017, $48.4 million in 2016, and $48.4 million in 

2015.  

Nonoperating revenues also include $20.8 million from Federal Pell Grants in 2017. Pell Grant revenue 

for 2016 and 2015 was $20.8 million and $21.9 million, respectively.  

 

Other revenues primarily consist of $1.2 million of permanent endowments and gifts in addition to $0.2 

million in capital appropriations from the State Building Authority for the completion of the Engineering 

Center.  

  

 2017  2016  2015  

% Change 

2017-2016  

% Change 

2016-2015 

 (in thousands)     

Education and general          

Instruction $ 118,867  $ 117,495  $ 109,730  1%  7% 

Research 9,096  8,747  8,744  4%  0% 

Public service 5,082  5,701  5,132  -11%  11% 

Academic support 49,978  44,477  42,856  12%  4% 

Student services 33,998  30,869  29,476  10%  5% 

Institutional support 29,560  26,725  24,981  11%  7% 

Operations and maintenance of 

   plant 
 

20,010 

  

21,748 

  

19,772 

  

-8% 

  

10% 

Depreciation 22,869  22,014  19,229  4%  14% 

Student aid 10,421  12,795  13,434  -19%  -5% 

      Total education and general 299,881  290,571  273,354  3%  6% 

Auxiliary activities 26,616  26,103  24,922  2%  5% 

Other expenses 123  16  5  669%  220% 

      Total operating expenses $ 326,620  $ 316,690  $ 298,281  3%  6% 



Oakland University 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2017 and 2016 

10 

 

Net position increased $22.2 million during 2017 and is primarily attributed to nonoperating activities 

including $17.3 million of investment income, $4.5 million in gifts, and $1.1 million in additions to 

permanent endowments.  The $9.8 million increase in 2016 is primarily attributed to nonoperating 

activities including $4.8 million of investment income, $4.5 million in gifts, and $0.9 million of additions 

to permanent endowments.  The $20.3 million increase in 2015 is primarily attributed to nonoperating 

activities including $6.8 million of investment income, $4.7 million in gifts, and $1.6 million of additions 

to permanent endowments.   

 

A graphic illustration of each revenue source is as follows: 
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University Statements of Cash Flows  

 

The University’s cash flows are summarized in the following Condensed Statements of Cash Flows: 

 

Condensed Statements of Cash Flows      

      

 2017  2016  2015 

 (in thousands) 

Cash from      

Operating activities $  (30,762)  $   (23,717)  $   (48,992) 

Noncapital financing activities 77,827  76,513  77,436 

Capital financing activities (73,428)  92,883  (53,690) 

Investing activities 7,227  (11,592)  11,685 

         Net change in cash and cash equivalents (19,136)  134,087  (13,561) 

      

Cash and cash equivalents      

Beginning of year 178,153  44,066  57,627 

End of year $ 159,017  $   178,153  $    44,066 

 

The primary cash receipts from operating activities consist of tuition, auxiliary activities, and grant and 

contract revenues.  Cash disbursements primarily include salaries and wages, benefits, supplies, utilities, 

and scholarships.  The decrease in net cash from operating activities is primarily the result of an increase 

in tuition that was less than the increases in payments to employees and suppliers. This decrease in cash 

from operating activities is ultimately offset by increased cash from noncapital financing activities 

Noncapital financing activities include State appropriation cash receipts of $49.6 million in 2017, $48.4 

million in 2016, and $47.9 million in 2015; Pell Grants totaling $20.8 million in 2017, $20.9 million in 

2016, and $21.9 million in 2015; and gift cash receipts of $7.3 million in 2017, $7.2 million in 2016, and 

$7.3 million in 2015. 

Capital financing activities for 2017 include capital expenditures of $57.8 million and debt service 

payments in the amount of $15.8 million. Cash disbursements for capital expenditures in 2017 included 

$28.3 million for the Southern Student Housing Complex; $14.0 million for renovations in Vandenberg 

Hall; $4.2 million for the Oakland Center expansion; $4.2 million in equipment, $0.4 million in library 

books; $1.2 million for parking lot expansion; $1.2 million for the backup datacenter generator at Dodge 

Hall; $0.9 million for the cogeneration system at the University’s Central Heating Plant; $0.6 million for 

renovations in Anibal and Pryle House; $0.5 million for the Elliott Hall expansion design; and $2.3 

million in various infrastructure and building improvements.  

 

Capital financing activities for 2016 include capital expenditures of $29.6 million, debt service payments 

in the amount of $16.1 million, the issuance of the 2016 Bonds for $113.1 million with a $20.8 million 

premium, and $4.6 million in capital appropriations. Cash disbursements for capital expenditures in 2016 

included $7.9 million for the cogeneration system at the University’s Central Heating Plant; $5.2 million 

in equipment, $0.4 million in library books; $3.6 million for the Engineering Center; $2.7 million for 

infrastructure repairs; $1.7 million for the Southern Student Housing Complex; $1.2 million for 

renovations in North Foundation and Vandenberg Halls; $0.5 million in repairs to Hill and Van Wagoner 

House; $0.5 million for technological upgrades to the O’Rena; and $5.9 million in various infrastructure 

and building improvements.  

 

Capital financing activities for 2015 include capital expenditures of $80.1 million, debt service payments 

in the amount of $16.3 million, the retirement of the 2009 Bonds for $30.8 million which were refunded 
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by the 2014 Bonds for $32.4 million, the issuance of the 2014 Certificates of Participation for $16.0 

million, and $24.5 million in capital appropriations. Cash disbursements for capital expenditures in 2015 

included $25.4 million for the Engineering Center; $14.0 million in equipment; $9.2 million for a new 

parking structure; $6.4 million for the Athletic and Recreation Outdoor Complex; $5.7 million for Oak 

View, the new student housing complex; $5.1 million for renovations in North Hamlin, North Foundation 

and Vandenberg Halls; $4.4 million for the cogeneration system at the University’s Central Heating Plant; 

$4.3 million for the Athletic Dome; and $3.0 million for construction of the Elliott Tower.   

 

Cash from investing activities is due to the timing variations of purchases, sales, and investment income. 

Commitments 

The estimated cost to complete construction projects in progress is $110.5 million as of June 30, 2017, 

due in large part to the ongoing construction costs of the new Southern Student Housing Complex in the 

amount of $45.5 million, expansion of the Oakland Center for $42.5 million, conversion of Anibal and 

Fitzgerald Halls into academic and administrative office space for $5.9 million, parking expansion 

initiative for $4.7 million, infrastructure renovations at Vandenberg Hall for $4.5 million, architectural 

and engineering services for the expansion of Elliott Hall for $1.3 million, and various campus 

enhancement projects totaling $6.1 million.  The Southern Student Housing Complex will be funded from 

proceeds from the 2016 Bonds. The Oakland Center expansion and conversion of the Anibal and 

Fitzgerald Halls will be funded from the 2016 Bonds and other sources. The parking expansion project 

and architectural and engineering services for the Elliott Hall expansion and other campus enhancements 

are funded from University resources. 

University Credit Rating 

On May 18, 2016, Moody’s Investors Service reaffirmed the University’s underlying credit rating as A1 - 

Stable. 

Deferred Plant Renewal 

The University annually surveys campus to identify deferred plant renewal, adding new items and 

deleting items that were addressed during the year.  Each year, general revenues are allocated to address 

deferred plant renewal items.  In addition, the University has established a quasi-endowment that provides 

investment earnings that are used to address deferred plant renewal needs. 

Factors or Conditions Impacting Future Periods 

Financial and budget planning is directly related to and supportive of the University’s mission, strategic 

plan, and operational needs.  The ability to plan effectively is influenced by an understanding of the 

following factors which impact the University’s finances: 

 Enrollment Management 

 Demographics, including number of high school graduates 

 Stability of State appropriations (including performance funding) 

 Increased globalization and mobilization of student population 

 Program growth and development 

 New initiatives 

 New and emergent technologies 

 Productivity improvements 

 Cost of inflation 

 



Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Trustees
Oakland University

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Oakland University (the "University"), a
component unit of the State of Michigan, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Oakland University's basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and in accordance with  standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of Oakland University as June 30, 2017, and the respective changes in its
financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows, for the year then ended, in  accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
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Juan.Spader
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To the Board of Trustees
Oakland University

Other Matters

The basic financial statements of Oakland University as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016 were
audited by a predecessor auditor, which expressed an unmodified opinion on the basic financial
statements.  The predecessor auditor's report was dated September 22, 2016.  

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, which considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.  We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 11,
2017 on our consideration of Oakland University's internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Oakland University's internal
control over financial reporting and compliance.

October 11, 2017
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Oakland University
Statements of Net Position

June 30, 2017 and 2016                                                                                                                                               

2017 2016

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2) 55,070,709$      36,326,043$      

Accounts receivable, net (Note 3) 10,962,659        12,238,304        

Appropriations receivable (Note 4) 9,076,494          8,794,892          

Pledges receivable, net (Note 5) 2,770,161          3,044,395          

Inventories 1,330,704          1,315,137          

Deposits and prepaid expenses 1,405,656          1,400,541          

Student loans receivable, net (Note 6) 426,940             417,685             

Total current assets 81,043,323        63,536,997        

Noncurrent assets

Restricted cash and cash equivalents (Note 2) 103,946,335      141,826,463      

Endowment investments (Note 2) 91,628,927        82,002,869        

Other long-term investments (Note 2) 147,290,160      146,378,496      

Pledges receivable, net (Note 5) 630,725             2,598,920          

Student loans receivable, net (Note 6) 1,349,561          1,399,074          

Derivative Instruments - swap asset (Note 7) 710,653             1,172,410          

Capital assets, net (Note 8) 538,937,348      500,924,141      

Other assets (Note 10) 557,479             534,560             

Total noncurrent assets 885,051,188      876,836,933      

Total assets 966,094,511      940,373,930      

Deferred outflows of resources (Note 11) 11,636,920        15,834,805        

Liabilities

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 31,697,523        24,706,603        

Accrued payroll 10,710,560        9,616,248          

Long-term liabilities – current portion (Note 12) 10,505,963        10,367,359        

Unearned revenue 17,002,817        15,799,369        

Deposits 2,545,544          2,154,305          

Total current liabilities 72,462,407        62,643,884        

Noncurrent liabilities

Unearned revenue 9,540,080          8,941,556          

Derivative Instruments - swap liability (Note 7) 6,822,139          10,659,755        

Long-term liabilities (Note 12) 362,315,151      371,793,499      

Other postemployment benefits (Note 13) 15,475,899        13,283,315        

Total noncurrent liabilities 394,153,269      404,678,125      

Total liabilities 466,615,676      467,322,009      

Net position

Net investment in capital assets 269,215,208      262,726,165      

Restricted nonexpendable 28,083,652        26,925,302        

Restricted expendable 43,762,414        37,560,954        

Unrestricted 170,054,481      161,674,305      

Total net position 511,115,755$    488,886,726$    

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Oakland University
Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

June 30, 2017 and 2016                                                                                                                       

2017 2016

Operating revenues

Tuition (net of scholarship allowances of 

  $55,559,300 in 2017 and $51,835,300 in 2016) 207,391,734$        200,021,083$        

Federal grants and contracts 8,611,026             8,358,976             

State, local, and private grants and contracts 2,735,443             3,107,535             

Departmental activities 12,487,514           11,136,937           

Auxiliary activities (net of scholarship allowances of

  $5,015,600 in 2017 and $4,691,700 in 2016) 32,024,356           30,932,042           

Other operating revenues 202,310               420,958               

Total operating revenues 263,452,383         253,977,531         

Operating expenses

Education and general

Instruction 118,867,157         117,494,623         

Research 9,096,058             8,746,592             

Public service 5,082,052             5,701,231             

Academic support 49,978,113           44,477,261           

Student services 33,997,655           30,869,161           

Institutional support 29,560,435           26,725,590           

Operations and maintenance of plant 20,009,892           21,748,139           

Depreciation 22,869,006           22,013,804           

Student aid 10,421,060           12,794,769           

Auxiliary activities 26,615,456           26,103,007           

Other expenses 122,729               15,971                 

Total operating expenses (Note 18) 326,619,613         316,690,148         

Operating loss (63,167,230)         (62,712,617)         

Nonoperating revenues (expenses)

State appropriations (Note 4) 49,920,700           48,371,900           

Gifts 4,516,984             4,516,308             

Investment income (net of investment expenses of

  $415,856 in 2017 and $359,416 in 2016) 17,303,254           4,815,082             

Interest on capital asset related debt (8,304,071)           (8,683,095)           

Pell grants 20,757,848           20,844,616           

Other (107,648)              (231,573)              

Net nonoperating revenues 84,087,067           69,633,238           

Income before other revenues 20,919,837           6,920,621             

Capital appropriations 162,167               1,857,036             

Capital grants and gifts 62,753                 16,059                 

Additions to permanent endowments 1,084,272             931,776               

Total other revenues 1,309,192             2,804,871             

Increase in net position 22,229,029           9,725,492             

Net position

Beginning of year 488,886,726         479,161,234         

End of year 511,115,755$       488,886,726$       

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Oakland University
Statements of Cash Flows

June 30, 2017 and 2016                                                                                                                                               

2017 2016

Cash flows from operating activities

Tuition 211,064,464$       198,523,079$       

Grants and contracts 10,832,555         12,291,325         

Payments to suppliers (70,433,488)        (68,813,315)        

Payments to employees (216,892,983)      (205,000,346)      

Payments for scholarships and fellowships (10,421,060)        (12,794,769)        

Loans issued to students (5,503)                 (219,341)             

Collection of loans from students 44,083                297,238              

Auxiliary enterprise charges 32,101,796         32,000,067         

Other receipts 12,948,287         19,999,307         

Net cash from operating activities (Note 18) (30,761,849)        (23,716,755)        

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities

State appropriations 49,639,098         48,370,482         

Federal direct lending receipts 112,688,367       109,478,387       

Federal direct lending disbursements (112,688,367)      (109,478,387)      

Gifts and grants for other than capital purposes 27,386,694         27,273,778         

Endowment gifts 800,955              868,667              

Net cash from noncapital financing activities 77,826,747         76,512,927         

Cash flows from capital financing activities

Proceeds from capital debt - 133,903,191

Capital appropriations 245,760 4,621,625

Capital grants, gifts, and other receipts - 32,118

Purchases of capital assets (57,813,259) (29,550,776)

Principal paid on capital debt and leases (7,188,777) (6,708,656)

Interest paid on capital debt and leases (8,671,373) (9,415,194)

Net cash from capital financing activities (73,427,649)        92,882,308         

Cash flows from investing activities

Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 54,127,771         59,275,700         

Investment income 2,520,632           1,806,398           

Purchase of investments (49,421,114)        (72,674,534)        

Net cash from investing activities 7,227,289           (11,592,436)        

Net change in cash and cash equivalents (19,135,462)        134,086,044       

Cash and cash equivalents

Beginning of year 178,152,506       44,066,462         

End of year 159,017,044$       178,152,506$       

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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1. Organization, Basis of Presentation, and Significant Accounting Policies 

Organization 

Oakland University (University) is an institution of higher education and is considered to be a 

component unit of the State of Michigan (State).  Its Board of Trustees (Board) is appointed by the 

Governor of the State.  Accordingly, the University is included in the State’s financial statements 

as a discretely presented component unit. Transactions with the State relate primarily to 

appropriations for operations, capital improvements and grants from various State agencies. 

Basis of Presentation 

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared using the economic resource 

measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. The statements incorporate all fund groups 

utilized internally by the University. These statements have been prepared in accordance with 

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as prescribed by the 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). 

The University follows the “business-type” activities requirements of GASB Statement No. 34, 

Basic Financial Statements-and Management’s Discussion and Analysis-for State and Local 

Governments, and GASB Statement No. 35, Basic Financial Statements-and Management’s 

Discussion and Analysis-for Public Colleges and Universities. These statements require the 

following components of the University’s financial statements: 

 Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

 Statements of Net Position, Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net 

Position, and Statements of Cash Flows 

 Notes to the financial statements 

GASB Statements No. 34 and 35 establish standards for external financial reporting for public 

colleges and universities and require that resources be classified for accounting and reporting 

purposes into the following four net asset categories: 

 Net investment in capital assets: Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and 

outstanding principal balances of debt attributable to the acquisition, construction or 

improvement of those assets. 

 Restricted: 

Nonexpendable – Net position subject to externally imposed constraints which 

permanently restrict the University from expending such assets. Such assets include the 

University’s permanent endowment funds. 

 
Expendable – Net position where use by the University is subject to externally imposed 

constraints that can be fulfilled by actions of the University pursuant to those constraints 

or that expire by the passage of time. 
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1. Organization, Basis of Presentation, and Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

 Unrestricted: Net position that is not subject to externally imposed constraints. Unrestricted 

net position may be designated for specific purposes by action of management or the Board 

or may otherwise be limited by contractual agreements with outside parties.  Substantially 

all of the unrestricted net position is designated for academic, research, and outreach 

programs and initiatives, postemployment benefits, operating and stabilization reserves, 

capital projects and capital asset renewals, and replacements. 

 

GASB Statements No. 34 and 35 also require the University to report revenues net of discounts and 

allowances. Gift and grant revenues are recognized at the later of the pledge date or when the 

eligibility requirement of the gifts and grants are met. In addition, direct lending is not reported as 

federal revenue and scholarship expenditures but is instead treated as an agency transaction. 

Significant Accounting Policies 

 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The University considers all investments with an original maturity of 90 days or less when 

purchased to be cash equivalents.  Restricted cash and cash equivalents consists of unexpended 

bond proceeds which are restricted for use as noted in the bond documents. 

Cash Flow Reporting 

For the purpose of presentation in the Statements of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents 

includes restricted cash. 

Investments 

Investments are stated at fair market value. 

Inventories 

Inventories are primarily stated at actual cost.  Included in the 2017 inventory are five homes in the 

Meadow Brook Subdivision owned by the University and valued at a total of $874,500. 

Physical Properties 

Physical properties are stated at cost or, if acquired by gift, at acquired value at the date of 

acquisition.  A capitalization threshold of $5,000 is used for equipment.  In addition, all equipment 

under a unit cost of $5,000 purchased in bulk for a newly constructed building is capitalized and 

depreciated over seven years.  Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the 

estimated useful life of the property.  When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and 

related accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts.  The costs of maintenance and 

repairs are expended as incurred. The University does not capitalize certain works of art or 

historical treasures that are held for exhibition, education, research or public service. 

The following are asset classifications and the respective estimated useful lives: 

Classifications Life 

Buildings 40 years 

Land improvements and infrastructure 20 years 

Library acquisitions 10 years 

Equipment and software 7 years 
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1. Organization, Basis of Presentation, and Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 

The Statements of Financial Position include a separate section for deferred outflows of resources.  

This separate financial statement element represents a consumption of net position that applies to a 

future period and will not be recognized as an expense until then.  Deferred outflows of resources 

consists of interest rate swap accumulated change in fair value, deferred amortization on refunding 

of debt, and the deferral of the swap termination cost for the 2001 Bonds.  

 

Unearned Revenue 

Unearned revenue consists primarily of summer semester tuition not earned during the current year 

and contractual advances. 

 

Revenue Recognition 

Operating revenues represent revenue earned from exchange transactions and consist of tuition, 

certain grants and contracts, departmental activities, auxiliary activities, and other miscellaneous 

revenues.  Nonoperating revenues include State appropriations, gifts, certain grants, and investment 

income. When an expense is incurred for which both restricted and unrestricted net position are 

available, the University applies the restricted or unrestricted resources at its discretion. 

Tuition revenue related to the summer semester is recognized in the fiscal year in which the 

semester is conducted.  

Scholarship allowance is the difference between the stated charge for tuition and the amount paid 

by the student or third parties making payments on behalf of the student. Student financial aid such 

as fee waivers, Pell grants, and scholarship awards are considered to be scholarship allowances if 

used to pay tuition and room and board. These allowances are netted against tuition and auxiliary 

revenues in the Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position. 

Funds are appropriated to the University for operations by the State covering the State’s fiscal year, 

October 1 through September 30. The appropriation is for the University’s fiscal year ending 

June 30 and is considered earned. 

Bond Issuance Costs 

Bond issuance costs are expensed when incurred. 

Income Tax Status 

The University is classified as a political subdivision of the State of Michigan under Section 115 of 

the Internal Revenue Code and is therefore exempt from federal income taxes.  Certain activities of 

the University may be subject to taxation as unrelated business income. 

Reclassification 

Certain 2016 amounts on the Statements of Net Positon have been reclassified to conform to the 

current year presentation. 

Deferred inflows of resources, derivatives instruments – swap asset and derivatives instruments – 

swap liability have been restated to reflect generally accepted accounting principles. The effect on 

the 2016 balances was to reclassify the net amount of $9,487,345 from “Deferred inflows of 

resources” to ($10,659,755) “Derivatives instruments – swap liability” and $1,172,410 to 
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1. Organization, Basis of Presentation, and Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

 
“Derivatives instruments – swap asset.”  There was no effect on net position or net income 

resulting from this reclassification. 

Certain 2016 balances on the Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position have 

been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation. Specifically, the University 

reclassified the following functional operating expenses to be more in line with industry guidelines: 

       As Previously 

Reported 

 

As Reclassified 

Operating expenses       

Education and general:       

Instruction     126,953,471  117,494,623  

Academic Support     35,018,413  44,477,261  

 

There was no effect on net position or net income resulting from this reclassification. 

New Accounting Pronouncements 

In June 2015, the GASB issued Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 

Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions (OPEB). This Statement replaces the requirements 

of Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment 

Benefits Other than Pensions.  Statement No. 75 will require the University to record the 

unrecorded OPEB liability currently disclosed in the footnotes, and present more extensive note 

disclosures and required supplementary information (RSI) about their OPEB liabilities. The date of 

adoption is for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018. 

In March 2016, the GASB issued Statement No. 81, Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements, which 

addresses the recognition and measurement of irrevocable split-interest agreements where the 

government is the beneficiary of the agreement. This standard will require the University to 

recognize on the face of the statements any assets, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources at 

the inception of the agreement. The date of adoption is for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018. 

 

2. Investments and Deposits with Financial Institutions  

Operating cash is pooled into investments and deposits, which are uninsured and uncollateralized. 

This pool is administered according to the University’s “Working Capital Management and 

Investment Policy.”  The University’s working capital is divided into three investment groups: 

short-term, intermediate-term, and long-term investments. Short-term investments are immediately 

available for use and have an average maturity of one year or less.  Intermediate-term investments 

are liquid within five business days or less and have an average maturity of no more than five 

years. Long-term investments are liquid within 20 business days or less and have average 

maturities over five years. The long-term investment asset class is limited to 30% of the total 

investment pool and includes equities. All investment classes are rated investment grade or better 

by at least one rating agency. Investments in any one entity, except the United States Government 

or its agencies, may not exceed 5% of the total investment pool. For non-amortizing securities, the 

maturity of any single debt instrument shall not exceed 15 years.  No more than 50% of equity and 

bond investments are assigned to a single investment manager. 
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2.  Investments and Deposits with Financial Institutions (continued) 

The working capital at June 30, 2017 does not involve any concentration of credit risk as all 

investments in single issuers or issues amount to less than 5% of the entire investment pool. 

 

The University’s working capital consists of the following as of June 30, 2017 and 2016: 

 

 
    Investment Maturities (In Years) 

                                   

June 30, 2017 

 Fair Market 

Value 

                        

<1 Year 

                      

1-5 years 

                      

6-10 years 

                  

>10 years 

                   

N/A 

             

University Working Capital           

 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 

  

$   55,070,709 

  

$   55,070,709 

  

$                - 

  

$                - 

  

$             - 

  

$                 - 

Commonfund 

  Limited Duration Fund 

  

19,765,954 

  

12,156,062 

  

7,431,999 

  

79,063 

  

98,830 

  

- 

Commonfund 

  Intermediate Bond Fund 

  

19,871,260 

  

5,087,043 

  

13,393,229 

  

1,390,988 

  

- 

  

- 

Commonfund 

  High Quality Bond Fund 

  

24,481,197 

  

1,150,616 

  

7,833,983 

  

10,771,727 

  

4,724,871 

  

- 

Commonfund 

  Contingent Asset Portfolio 

  

16,390,940 

  

868,720 

  

10,047,646 

  

5,474,574 

  

- 

  

- 

Commonfund             

  Core Equity Fund   20,772,852  -  -  -  -  20,772,852 

Commonfund 

  Strategic Equity Fund 

  

25,272,789 

  

- 

  

- 

  

- 

  

- 

  

25,272,789 

JP Morgan Bond Fund  20,735,168  4,762,155  15,449,751  523,262  -  - 

Cash with Trustees  103,946,335  103,946,335  -  -  -  - 

  Operating investments  $ 306,307,204  $ 183,041,640  $ 54,156,608  $     18,239,614  $  4,823,701  $ 46,045,641 

             

As Reported on the Statement of Net Position           

Cash and cash equivalents  $   55,070,709           

Restricted cash and cash 
    equivalents  

  

103,946,335 

          

Other long-term investments  147,290,160           

  $ 306,307,204           
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2.      Investments and Deposits with Financial Institutions (continued) 

 

    Investment Maturities (In Years) 

                                   

June 30, 2016 

 Fair Market 

Value 

                        

<1 Year 

                       

1-5 years 

                      

6-10 years 

                   

>10 years 

                   

N/A 

             

University Working Capital           

 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 

  
$   36,326,043 

  
$  36,326,043 

  
$                - 

  
$                - 

  
$                - 

  
$                - 

Commonfund 

  Limited Duration Fund 

  

22,075,602 

  

10,821,460 

  

11,117,273 

  

- 

  

136,869 

  

- 

Commonfund 

  Intermediate Bond Fund 

  

17,809,292 

  

3,880,645 

  

12,895,708 

  

1,032,939 

  

- 

  

- 

Commonfund 
  High Quality Bond Fund 

  
25,190,936 

  
3,136,272 

  
9,753,930 

  
7,597,586 

  
4,703,148 

  
- 

Commonfund 
  Contingent Asset Portfolio 

  
11,400,060 

  
647,523 

  
8,868,107 

  
1,884,430 

  
- 

  
- 

Commonfund             

  Core Equity Fund   20,312,094  -  -  -  -  20,312,094 

Commonfund 
  Strategic Equity Fund 

  
29,372,331 

  
- 

  
- 

  
- 

  
- 

  
29,372,331 

JP Morgan Bond Fund  20,218,181  4,437,057  15,556,087  225,037  -  - 

Cash with Trustees  141,826,463  141,826,463  -  -  -  - 

  Operating investments  $ 324,531,002  $ 201,075,463  $ 58,191,105  $ 10,739,992  $   4,840,017  $ 49,684,425 

             

As Reported on the Statement of Net Position           

Cash and cash equivalents  $   36,326,043           

Restricted cash and cash 

    equivalents  

  

141,826,463 

          

Other long-term investments  146,378,496           

  $ 324,531,002           

   

Investment duration describes the level of interest rate risk in the portfolio. Changes in interest 

rates over time can impact the market value of the fixed income portion of the portfolio. At June 

30, 2017, the Commonfund Limited Duration Fund had a duration of .6 years and an average credit 

quality of AA. The JP Morgan Bond Fund had a duration of 1.9 years and an average credit quality 

of AA. The Commonfund Intermediate Term Bond Fund had a duration of 2.0 years and an 

average credit quality of AA. The Commonfund Contingent Asset Portfolio had a duration of 1.4 

years and an average credit quality of AAA. The Commonfund High Quality Bond Fund had a 

duration of 5.5 years and an average credit quality of A. 

 

For deposits, custodial credit risk is present if the deposits are not covered by depository insurance 

and are 1) uncollateralized; 2) collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial 

institution; or 3) collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust 

department or agent but not in the University’s name. The carrying amount of deposits, excluding 

those classified as investments, was $31,845,254 at June 30, 2017, and $31,983,763 at June 30, 

2016. The deposits were reflected in the accounts of the banks at $32,354,192 at June 30, 2017, and 

$34,978,172 at June 30, 2016. Of the bank balance, $31,737,610 at June 30, 2017, and $34,327,295 

at June 30, 2016, was uninsured and uncollateralized. 
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2.     Investments and Deposits with Financial Institutions (continued) 

 
The University’s working capital is not exposed to foreign currency risk as of June 30, 2017. 

 

These working capital produced net rates of return of 3.5% for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 

2016. 

 

As of June 30, 2017 and 2016, the University had an investment derivative with the following 

maturity: 

 
June 30, 2017  Fair Value  <1 Year  1-5 years  6-10 years  >10 years 

           
Constant Maturity Swap  $    710,653  $        -  $        -  $        -  $   710,653 

           

June 30, 2016  Fair Value  <1 Year  1-5 years  6-10 years  >10 years 

           

Constant Maturity Swap  $ 1,172,410  $        -  $        -  $        -  $ 1,172,410 

 

The investment derivative was approved by the Board.  The investment derivative is included with 

deferred outflows of resources in the Statements of Net Position.  See Notes 7 and 11 for further 

disclosures. 

 

The University’s endowment investments are administered according to the University’s 

“Endowment Management and Investment Policy.”  Concentration of credit risk is limited to no 

more than 1% of the portfolio in any one principal protected structured product or structured equity 

product. Endowment investments are broadly diversified and there is no investment in a single 

issuer other than the U.S. Government that amounts to more than 5% of the portfolio. The 

“Endowment Management and Investment Policy” restricts fixed income investments to “high 

quality” (primarily A to AAA rated) corporate bonds, U.S. Treasury, and agency securities or 

issues of supranational organizations and foreign sovereigns and no more than 20% of the fixed 

income portfolio may be invested in securities rated less than BBB or that are illiquid.  

These endowment investment funds are uninsured and uncollateralized and produced a total net 

return of 12.4% and -1.4% for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively. 
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2. Investments and Deposits with Financial Institutions (continued) 

University endowment funds consist of the following as of June 30, 2017 and 2016: 
 

    Investment Maturities (In Years) 

June 30, 2017  Total  <1 Year  1-5 years  6-10 years  >10 years  N/A 

             UBS Endowment Investment Pool           

             Large Cap Value  $ 16,295,043  $    181,731  $                -  $                -  $                -  $ 16,113,312 

Large Cap Growth  16,207,114  78,475  -  -  -  16,128,639 

Mid Cap Value  3,196,053  3  -  -  -  3,196,050 

Mid Cap Growth  7,230,161  1  -  -  -  7,230,160 

Small Cap Core  5,796,832  1  -  -  -  5,796,831 

Small Cap Growth  2,717,986  -  -  -  -  2,717,986 

REIT  2,851,466  -  -  -  -  2,851,466 

International Value  1,769,390  30  -  -  -  1,769,360 

International Growth  6,389,802  65  -  -  -  6,389,737 

Developing Markets  3,905,438  34  -  -  -  3,905,404 

Fixed Income Core  8,267,522  292,453  3,721,256  3,537,130  716,683  - 

Fixed Income Mutual Fund  3,501,918  325,234  1,142,454  1,645,062  389,168  - 

High Yield Bonds  1,441,039  97,491  558,029  748,345  37,174  - 

Fixed Income TIPS  990,359  1  -  -  -  990,358 

Hedge Funds  8,220,429  73  -  -  -  8,220,356 

Commodity Mutual Fund          1,054,221  -  -  -  -  1,054,221 

Private Equity  1,794,104  24,948  -  -  -  1,769,156 

Money Market Funds  50  50  -  -  -  - 

  $ 91,628,927  $ 1,000,590  $ 5,421,739  $ 5,930,537  $   1,143,025  $ 78,133,036 
 

  
    Investment Maturities (In Years) 

June 30, 2016  Total  <1 Year  1-5 years  6-10 years  >10 years  N/A 

             UBS Endowment Investment Pool           

             Large Cap Value  $  13,745,922  $     136,564  $                -  $                -  $                 -  $  13,609,358 

Large Cap Growth  13,252,957  3  -  -  -  13,252,954 

Mid Cap Value  2,766,316  3  -  -  -  2,766,313 

Mid Cap Growth  6,080,059  (511)  -  -  -  6,080,570 
Small Cap Core  4,735,135  51  -  -  -  4,735,084 

Small Cap Growth  2,238,688  (412)  -  -  -  2,239,100 

REIT  2,419,943  2  -  -  -  2,419,941 
International Value  2,435,057  30  -  -  -  2,435,027 

International Core  6,164,467  43  -  -  -  6,164,424 

Developing Markets  3,208,349  246  -  -  -  3,208,103 
Fixed Income Core  8,111,695  372,160  3,563,356  3,633,031  543,148  - 

Fixed Income Mutual Fund  2,370,749  426,736  972,007  758,639  213,367  - 

High Yield Bonds  2,231,746  77,468  830,432  1,323,846  -  - 
Global Fixed  1,728,899  656,981  605,115  293,912  172,891  - 

Hedge Funds  7,835,337  73  -  -  -  7,835,264 

Energy MLP  168,103  168,103  -  -  -  - 
Commodity Mutual Fund  1,142,103  -  -  -  -  1,142,103 

Private Equity  1,367,344  2  -  -  -  1,367,342 

  $ 82,002,869  $ 1,837,542  $ 5,970,910  $ 6,009,428  $     929,406  $ 67,255,583 

 
The fixed income investments within the Endowment pool have a fair market value of $14.2 

million as of June 30, 2017, with a credit quality that varies; with 40.6% of the securities rated 

AAA, 25.1% rated A and 17.5% rated BBB and 16.8% rated B to BB-.  Money market funds carry 

credit ratings of A-1, P-1, and F-1. 

 

The University is not exposed to foreign currency risk within the investment balance as of June 30, 

2017. 
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2. Investments and Deposits with Financial Institutions (continued) 

The private equity investment’s estimated value is $1,794,104 as of June 30, 2017 with an active 

total commitment by the University of $3,100,000. Hedge fund investments are estimated at a 

value of $8,220,429 as of June 30, 2017.  Estimated values and returns are reviewed by the UBS 

Alternative Investments U.S. Team through the University’s endowment investment adviser UBS 

Financial Services, Inc. 

 

Fair value is most often determined by open market prices except for the private equity and hedge 

funds.  The estimated fair values are provided by external investment managers and advisers as of 

June 30, 2017.  Alternative investments are not readily marketable; therefore, their estimated value 

may differ from the value that would have been used had a ready market value for such 

investments existed. 

 

For donor restricted endowments, the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act, as 

adopted in Michigan, permits the University to appropriate an amount of realized and unrealized 

endowment appreciation as determined to be prudent. 

 

The majority (97%) of the endowment investment pool can be liquidated within 90 days or less at 

fair market value.  

 

The University categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established 

by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to 

measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in the active markets for 

identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are 

significant unobservable inputs. 

 

The fair value of various equity and debt securities held at June 30, 2017 and 2016 was determined 

primarily on Level 2 inputs. The University estimates the fair value of these investments using 

other inputs such as interest rates and yield curves that are observable at commonly quoted 

intervals. 

 

Derivative instruments classified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy are valued using a market 

approach that considers benchmark interest rates. 
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2. Investments and Deposits with Financial Institutions (continued) 

   

 

Fair Value as of                                       

June 30, 2017 

 Quoted Prices in 

Active Markets 

for Identical 

Assets (Level 1) 

 Significant 

Other 

Observable 

Inputs (Level 2) 

  

Significant 

Unobservable 

Inputs (Level 3) 

Investments by fair value level:         
Other Long-term Investments:          

Commonfund 

   Limited Duration Fund 

 $   19,765,954  $                    -  $   19,765,954                  $                        - 

Commonfund 

   Intermediate Bond Fund 

 19,871,260  -  19,871,260  - 

Commonfund 
   High Quality Bond Fund 

 24,481,197  -  24,481,197  - 

Commonfund 

   Contingent Asset Portfolio 

 16,390,940  -  16,390,940  - 

Commonfund  

   Core Equity Fund 

 5,421,714  5,421,714  -  - 

Commonfund  
   Strategic Equity Fund 

 25,272,789  -  25,272,789  - 

JP Morgan Bond Fund  20,735,168  20,735,168  -  - 

   131,939,022     26,156,882     105,782,140  - 

Endowment Investment:         

           Large Cap Value     16,295,043     16,295,043  -  - 

Large Cap Growth  16,207,114  16,207,114  -  - 

Mid Cap Value  3,196,053  3,196,053  -  - 

Mid Cap Growth  7,230,161  7,230,161  -  - 

Small Cap Core  5,796,832  5,796,832  -  - 

Small Cap Growth  2,717,986  2,717,986  -  - 

REIT  2,851,466  2,851,466    -  - 

International Value  1,769,390  1,769,390  -  - 

International Growth  6,389,802  6,389,802  -  - 

Developing Markets  3,905,438  3,905,438  -  - 

Fixed Income Core  8,267,522  8,267,522  -  - 

Fixed Income Mutual Fund  3,501,918  3,501,918  -  - 

High Yield Bonds  1,441,039  1,441,039  -  - 

Fixed Income TIPS  990,359  990,359  -  - 

Strategic Common Mutual Fund  1,054,221  1,054,221  -  - 

Money Market Funds  50  50  -  - 

     81,614,394     81,614,394          -                  -  

Investment Derivative Instruments:         

Constant Maturity Swap   710,653  -  710,653  - 

Total investments by fair value level  $ 214,264,069  $  107,771,276  $      106,492,793  $                         - 

         

            

           

          Investments measured at the net asset value (NAV) 

      

   

June 30, 2017 

 Unfunded 

Commitments 

 Redemption 

Frequency 

 Redemption 

Notice Period 

         

Commonfund Core Equity Fund    $  15,351,138      $                     -  Weekly  5 Days……..   

Hedge Funds  8,220,429  -         Quarterly  7-105 Days ...            

Private Equity  1,794,104  1,299,486  Not Applicable  Not Applicable 

Total investments measured at NAV  25,365,671  1,299,486     

Total  $ 239,629,740  $      1,299,486     
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2. Investments and Deposits with Financial Institutions (continued) 

   

 

Fair Value as of                                       

June 30, 2016 

 Quoted Prices in 

Active Markets 

for Identical 

Assets (Level 1) 

 Significant 

Other 

Observable 

Inputs (Level 2) 

  

Significant 

Unobservable 

Inputs (Level 3) 

Other Long-term Investments:          
Commonfund  

   Limited Duration Fund 

 $    22,075,602  $                  -    $    22,075,602                   $                             - 

Commonfund  
   Intermediate Bond Fund 

     17,809,292      -      17,809,292                                     - 

Commonfund  

   High Quality Bond Fund 

 25,190,936  -  25,190,936  - 

Commonfund 

   Contingent Asset Fund 

 11,400,060  -  11,400,060  - 

Commonfund  

   Core Equity Fund 

 14,421,587  14,421,587  -  - 

Commonfund   

   Strategic Equity Fund 

 29,372,331  -  29,372,331  - 

JP Morgan Bond Fund  20,218,181       20,218,181       -  - 

    140,487,989    34,639,768  105,848,221  - 

Endowment Investment:         
           Large Cap Value  13,745,922  13,745,922  -  - 

Large Cap Growth  13,252,957  13,252,957  -  - 

Mid Cap Value  2,766,316  2,766,316  -  - 
Mid Cap Growth  6,080,059  6,080,059  -  - 

Small Cap Core  4,735,135  4,735,135  -  - 

Small Cap Growth  2,238,688  2,238,688  -  - 
REIT  2,419,943  2,419,943  -  - 

International Value  2,435,057  2,435,057  -  - 

International Core  6,164,467  6,164,467  -  - 
Developing Markets  3,208,349  3,208,349  -  - 

Fixed Income Core  8,111,695  8,111,695  -  - 

Fixed Income Mutual Fund  2,370,749  2,370,749  -  - 
High Yield Bonds  2,231,746  2,231,746  -  - 

Global Fixed  1,728,899  1,728,899  -  - 

Energy MLP  168,103  168,103  -  - 
Strategic Common Mutual Fund  1,142,103  1,142,103  -  - 

      72,800,188      72,800,188  -   - 

Investment Derivative Instruments:         

Constant Maturity Swap   1,172,410  -  1,172,410    - 

Total by fair value level  $  214,460,587  $  107,439,956  $  107,020,631  $                           - 

  

 
            

           

          Investments measured at the net asset value (NAV) 

      

   

June 30, 2016 

 Unfunded 

Commitments 

 Redemption 

Frequency 

 Redemption 

Notice Period 

         

Commonfund Core Equity Fund    $    5,890,507      $                     -  Weekly  5 Days……..   

Hedge Funds  7,835,337  -         Quarterly  7-105 Days ...            

Private Equity  1,367,344  1,617,911  Not Applicable  Not Applicable 

Total investments measured at NAV  15,093,188  1,617,911     

Total  $ 229,553,775  $      1,617,911     
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3. Accounts Receivable 

Accounts receivable consist of the following as of June 30, 2017 and 2016: 

 2017  2016 

    
Tuition $  14,207,536  $  14,328,603 

Auxiliary enterprises 1,339,027  1,345,514 

Contracts and grants 2,757,438  2,757,391 

Other receivables 1,694,885  1,124,082 

               Total accounts receivable 19,998,886  19,555,590 

Less:  Allowance for doubtful accounts (9,036,227)  (7,317,286) 

               Total accounts receivable, net $  10,962,659  $  12,238,304 

 

 

4. Appropriations Receivable 

The annual State operating appropriation paid to the University is made in 11 monthly installments 

from October through August.  Consistent with State of Michigan legislation, the University has 

accrued, as of the end of its fiscal year, the payments to be received in July and August.  As of 

June 30, 2017 and 2016, the accrual of the July and August State operating appropriation payments 

created an appropriation receivable of $9,076,494 and $8,794,892, respectively. 

5. Pledges Receivable 

Pledges receivable consist of the following as of June 30, 2017 and 2016: 

 2017  2016 

Pledges outstanding    

Unrestricted $       45,721  $       52,608 

Restricted expendable 3,680,702  6,156,417 

               Total pledges outstanding 3,726,423  6,209,025 

Less:    

     Allowance for doubtful pledges (142,640)  (169,906) 

     Present value discount (182,897)  (395,804) 

               Total pledges outstanding, net 3,400,886  5,643,315 

    
Less:  Current portion, net (2,770,161)  (3,044,395) 

Noncurrent portion, net $     630,725  $  2,598,920 

 

Pledges receivable from donors are recorded at net present value less allowances for doubtful 

accounts.  As of June 30, 2017 and 2016, the interest rate used to discount pledges to present value 

was 5%.  The aggregate allowance for doubtful accounts was 4% and 3% net of discount at 

June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively.  Approximately $2.3 million of the total net pledges 

outstanding as of June 30, 2017 is from a single donor. 
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5. Pledges Receivable (continued) 

Payments on pledges receivable as of June 30, 2017 are expected to be received in the following 

years: 

Past due $     116,195 

Due in one year 2,706,203 

Due in two-five years 594,025 

Thereafter 310,000 

                 Total $  3,726,423 
  

Bequest intentions and other conditional promises are not recognized as assets until the specified 

conditions are met because of uncertainties with regard to their realizability and valuation.  As of 

June 30, 2017 and 2016, the University had $29,200,729 and $26,130,318, respectively, in 

conditional pledge commitments receivable not included in the accompanying financial statements.  

Of the $29,200,729 in conditional pledges for fiscal year 2017, approximately $5.5 million is from 

a single donor.   

6. Student Loans Receivable 

Student loans receivable consist of the following as of June 30, 2017 and 2016: 

 2017  2016 

Student loans    

Federal loan programs $ 1,559,185  $ 1,840,111 

University loan funds 218,316  218,340 

 1,777,501  2,058,451 

Less:  Allowance for doubtful loans (1,000)  (241,692) 

               Total student loans, net 1,776,501  1,816,759 

Less: Current portion, net (426,940)  (417,685) 

Noncurrent portion, net $ 1,349,561  $ 1,399,074 

 

In addition, the University distributed $112,688,367 and $109,478,387 for the years ended June 30, 

2017 and 2016, respectively, for student loans through the U.S. Department of Education Federal 

Direct Loan program.  These distributions and related funding sources are not included as expenses 

and revenues in the accompanying financial statements, but are reflected in the University’s 

Statements of Cash Flows. 
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7. Hedging Derivative Instruments 

The University follows the provisions of GASB No. 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 

Derivative Instruments.  The derivatives are valued using an independent pricing service.  The 

following provides a description of each swap agreement. 

Investment Derivative Instrument: 

2007 Constant Maturity Swap Agreement 

In June 2007, the University executed a Constant Maturity Swap (CMS) in an initial notional 

amount of $34,370,000 effective October 1, 2007, the purpose of which was to reduce interest 

costs.  Under the CMS, the University pays the counterparty the SIFMA Municipal Swap Index 

and receives 90.39% of the ten-year SIFMA Swap Rate until March 1, 2031.  No amounts were 

paid or received when the CMS was initiated. 

The estimated fair value of the CMS as of June 30, 2017 and 2016 was $710,653 and $1,172,410, 

respectively. These fair values are reported as Derivative Instruments – swap asset in the 

Statements of Net Position with the change in fair value of ($461,757) and ($794,340) for fiscal 

years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively, included in Investment income in the Statements 

of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position. The fair value represents the estimated 

amount that the University would receive to terminate the CMS, taking into account current interest 

rates and creditworthiness of the underlying counterparty.   

The University is exposed to credit risk, which is the risk that the counterparty will not fulfill its 

obligations.  As of June 30, 2017, the counterparty’s credit rating from Moody’s Investors Service 

was Aa3.  The CMS includes collateral requirements intended to mitigate credit risk.  As of 

June 30, 2017, there is no collateral posting requirement by either the counterparty or the 

University.  Under this agreement, the University is exposed to an interest rate risk which arises 

when short-term rates exceed the ten-year rates. 

In addition, since the rates received and paid by the University are variable rates, the University is 

exposed to basis risk, which is the risk that arises when variable interest rates are based on different 

indexes. 

The CMS is based on an International Swaps and Derivatives Association, Inc. Master Agreement, 

which includes standard termination events such as failure to pay and bankruptcy, or termination 

risk.  In addition, the Master Agreement includes additional termination events.  If the CMS is 

terminated, the University may be required to pay an amount equal to the fair value if it is negative.  

In addition, termination of the CMS would result in the University losing the benefit it is currently 

receiving related to the CMS payments.  
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7. Hedging Derivative Instruments (continued) 

 

2008 Interest Rate Swap Agreement 

In connection with the 2008 Bonds, the University entered into an interest rate hedging swap 

agreement (2008 Swap) with Dexia Credit Local, New York Branch in an initial notional amount 

of $53,280,000 effective June 13, 2008, the purpose of which is to synthetically fix interest rates on 

the 2008 Bonds.  The agreement swaps the University’s variable rate for a fixed rate of 3.37% and 

is based on 67% of U.S. Dollar LIBOR.  The notional amount declines over time and terminates 

March 1, 2031.  The notional amount as of June 30, 2017 was $44,790,000.  Under the 2008 Swap 

agreement, the University pays a synthetic fixed rate of 3.37%.  No amounts were paid or received 

when the 2008 Swap was initiated. 

The University is currently making payments under the 2008 Swap agreement.  The estimated fair 

value of the 2008 Swap as of June 30, 2017 and 2016 was ($6,822,139) and ($10,659,755), 

respectively.  These fair values are reflected as Derivative Instruments – swap liability on the 

Statements of Net Position.  The fair value of the hedging derivative instrument classified as Level 

2 (significant other observable inputs) at June 2017 and 2016 was valued based on 67% of U.S. 

Dollar LIBOR and represents the estimated amount that the University would pay to terminate the 

2008 Swap (termination risk), taking into account current interest rates and creditworthiness of the 

underlying counterparty.  In accordance with GASB No. 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting 

for Derivative Instruments, the 2008 Swap is treated as an Effective Hedging Derivative 

Instrument.  The accumulated change in fair value is recorded as a deferred outflow of resources. 

The University is exposed to credit risk, which is the risk that the counterparty will not fulfill its 

obligations.  The 2008 Swap includes collateral requirements intended to mitigate credit risk.  As 

of June 30, 2017, the University posted $2,250,000 of collateral with the counterparty which was 

required under the agreement when the fair value is less than a negative $5,000,000 at the 

University’s current credit rating of A1 or zero should the University default.  As of June 30, 2017, 

the counterparty’s credit rating from Moody’s Investors Service was Baa3. 

Additionally, the 2008 Swap exposes the University to basis risk, which is the risk that arises when 

variable interest rates on a derivative and an associated bond or other interest-paying financial 

instruments are based on different indexes.  The University is also exposed to interest rate risk 

which is the risk that as the swap index decreases, the University’s net payment on the 2008 Swap 

increases. 

The 2008 Swap is based on an International Swaps and Derivatives Association, Inc. Master 

Agreement, which includes standard termination events such as failure to pay and bankruptcy, or 

termination risk.  In addition, the Master Agreement includes additional termination events.  If the 

2008 Swap is terminated, the 2008 Bonds will no longer carry a synthetic interest rate, and the 

University may be required to pay an amount equal to the fair value if it is negative.  
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8. Capital Assets 

The following tables present the changes in the various capital asset categories for the University 

for fiscal years 2017 and 2016: 

 

Asset Classification 

 Balance 

June 30, 2016 

  

Additions 

 Reductions/ 

Transfers 

 Balance 

June 30, 2017 

         

Land  $      4,624,914  $                      -  $                      -  $      4,624,914 

Land improvements and 

    infrastructure 

  

80,709,690 

  

379,408 

 

 

 

- 

  

81,089,098 

Buildings  558,361,867  30,640,640  127,419  588,875,088 

Equipment  55,799,190  4,257,010  1,753,951  58,302,249 

Library acquisitions  26,326,225  372,456  178,274  26,520,407 

Construction in progress  28,356,918  57,873,100  32,279,346  53,950,672 

           Total  754,178,804  93,522,614  34,338,990  813,362,428 

         

Accumulated depreciation         

    Land improvements and 

        infrastructure 

  

(35,228,027) 

  

(3,688,167) 

  

- 

  

(38,916,194) 

    Buildings  (163,227,860)  (13,364,796)  (119,856)  (176,472,800) 

    Equipment  (32,383,489)  (5,535,056)  (1,400,459)  (36,518,086) 

    Library acquisitions  (22,415,287)  (280,987)  (178,274)  (22,518,000) 

           Total  (253,254,663)  (22,869,006)  (1,698,589)  (274,425,080) 

           Total capital assets, net  $  500,924,141  $    70,653,608  $    32,640,401  $  538,937,348 

 

 

 

Asset Classification 

 Balance 

June 30, 2015 

  

Additions 

 Reductions/ 

Transfers 

 Balance 

June 30, 2016 

         

Land  $      4,624,914  $                      -  $                      -  $      4,624,914 

Land improvements and 

    infrastructure 

  

76,623,461 

  

4,086,229 

 

 

 

- 

  

80,709,690 

Buildings  547,438,621  11,023,246  100,000  558,361,867 

Equipment  52,701,747  4,878,775  1,781,332  55,799,190 

Library acquisitions  26,265,816  451,147  390,738  26,326,225 

Construction in progress  15,035,426  30,062,076  16,740,584  28,356,918 

           Total  722,689,985  50,501,473  19,012,654  754,178,804 

         

Accumulated depreciation         

    Land improvements and 

        infrastructure 

  

(31,642,086) 

  

(3,585,941) 

  

- 

  

(35,228,027) 

    Buildings  (150,462,218)  (12,851,803)  (86,161)  (163,227,860) 

    Equipment  (28,824,796)  (5,230,957)  (1,672,264)  (32,383,489) 

    Library acquisitions  (22,459,760)  (346,265)  (390,738)  (22,415,287) 

           Total  (233,388,860)  (22,014,966)  (2,149,163)  (253,254,663) 

           Total capital assets, net  $  489,301,125  $  28,486,507  $  16,863,491  $  500,924,141 
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9. State Building Authority 

The University has lease agreements with the State Building Authority (SBA) and the State of 

Michigan for the School of Education and Human Services Building (Pawley Hall), the 

Mathematics and Science Center, the Business and Technology Building (Elliott Hall), the Human 

Health Building, and the Engineering Center.  The buildings were financed with SBA revenue 

bonds, State capital appropriations, and University general revenue bonds. 

The SBA bond issues are collateralized by a pledge of rentals to be received from the State 

pursuant to the lease agreements between the SBA, the State, and the University.  During the lease 

terms, the SBA will hold title to the facilities; the State will make all annual lease payments to the 

SBA; and the University will pay all operating and maintenance costs of the facilities. 

At the expiration of the leases, the SBA has agreed to sell each facility to the University for one 

dollar.  The cost and accumulated depreciation for these facilities is included in the accompanying 

Statements of Net Position. 

10. Cash Surrender Value of Life Insurance Policies 

Included in other assets are the cash surrender value of life insurance policies in the amount of 

$424,479 and $401,561 for 2017 and 2016, respectively.  The face value of these life insurance 

policies totaled $8,033,072 in 2017 and 2016. 

 

11. Deferred Outflows of Resources 

The University accounts for deferred outflows of resources in accordance with authoritative 

guidance. The University recorded deferred outflows of $11,636,920 as of June 30, 2017, which 

includes $4,814,781 from an early extinguishment of general revenue bonds, 2014 Bonds, 2013B 

Bonds, and 2008 Bonds, and a deferral of swap termination costs for the 2001 Bonds, and 

$6,822,139 the accumulated change in fair value of the 2008 Swap.  As of June 30, 2016, the 

University recorded deferred outflows of $15,834,805, which includes $5,175,050 from an early 

extinguishment of general revenue bonds, 2014 Bonds, 2013B Bonds, and 2008 Bonds, and a 

deferral of swap termination costs for the 2001 Bonds, and $10,659,755 estimated negative fair 

value of the 2008 Swap. 
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12. Long-Term Liabilities 

Long-term liabilities consist of the following as of June 30, 2017 and 2016: 

  Balance 

June 30, 2016 

 Additions/ 

Transfers 

  

Reductions 

 Balance 

June 30, 2017 

 Current 

Portion 

  Note and installment 

    purchase agreements payable 

 

$   12,397,424  $                    -  $   1,088,777  $   11,308,647  $      913,766 

  General revenue bonds:           

   Series 2016 bonds  113,130,000  -  -  113,130,000  - 

        Unamortized premium  20,726,916  -  1,138,977  19,587,939  1,163,552 

   Series 2014 bonds  26,565,000  -  655,000  25,910,000  680,000 

        Unamortized premium  3,804,015  -  332,712  3,471,303  319,093 

   Series 2013A bonds  56,825,000  -  1,075,000  55,750,000  1,130,000 

        Unamortized premium  5,723,820  -  447,930  5,275,890  421,399 

   Series 2013B bonds  19,455,000  -  1,750,000  17,705,000  1,770,000 

   Series 2012 bonds  42,505,000  -  865,000  41,640,000  895,000 

        Unamortized premium  3,808,958  -  291,877  3,517,081  278,406 

   Series 2008 bonds  46,355,000  -  1,565,000  44,790,000  1,630,000 

   Series 1998 variable rate           

        demand bonds  4,600,000  -  -  4,600,000  - 

   2014 Certificates of participation  14,225,000  -  190,000  14,035,000  285,000 

        Unamortized premium  1,539,689  -  116,474  1,423,215  118,002 

        Total note, installment 

           agreement, and bonds payable 

 

371,660,822 
 

-  9,516,747  362,144,075  9,604,218 

Other liabilities:           

    Compensated absences  5,576,980  1,185,535  838,108  5,924,407  375,745 

    Annuities payable and other  3,476,764  4,156  287,473  3,193,447  526,000 

    Federal portion of 
      Perkins loan program 

 
1,446,292 

 

112,893  -  1,559,185  - 

              Total other liabilities  10,500,036  1,302,584  1,125,581  10,677,039  901,745 

              Total long-term liabilities  $ 382,160,858  $   1,302,584  $ 10,642,328  $ 372,821,114  $ 10,505,963 

           

Total long-term liabilities  $ 382,160,858      $ 372,821,114   

Current portion  10,367,359      10,505,963   

Noncurrent portion  $ 371,793,499      $ 362,315,151   
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12.  Long-Term Liabilities (continued) 

  Balance 

June 30, 2015 

 Additions/ 

Transfers 

  

Reductions 

 Balance 

June 30, 2016 

 Current 

Portion 

  Note and installment 

    purchase agreements payable 

 

$   13,371,080  $             -  $      973,656  $   12,397,424  $     986,880 

  General revenue bonds:           
   Series 2016 bonds  -  113,130,000  -  113,130,000  - 

        Unamortized premium  -  20,773,191  46,275  20,726,916  1,138,977 

   Series 2014 bonds  27,200,000  -  635,000  26,565,000  655,000 
        Unamortized premium  4,147,225  -  343,210  3,804,015  332,712 

   Series 2013A bonds  57,860,000  -  1,035,000  56,825,000  1,075,000 

        Unamortized premium  6,196,102  -  472,282  5,723,820  447,930 
   Series 2013B bonds  21,185,000  -  1,730,000  19,455,000  1,750,000 

   Series 2012 bonds  43,340,000  -  835,000  42,505,000  865,000 

        Unamortized premium  4,110,198  -  301,240  3,808,958  291,877 

   Series 2008 bonds  47,855,000  -  1,500,000  46,355,000  1,565,000 

   Series 1998 variable rate           

        demand bonds  4,600,000  -  -  4,600,000  - 
   2014 Certificates of participation  14,225,000  -  -  14,225,000  190,000 

        Unamortized premium  1,656,164  -  116,475  1,539,689  116,474 

        Total note, installment 
           agreement, and bonds payable 

 
245,745,769 

 

133,903,191  7,988,138  371,660,822  9,414,850 

Other liabilities:           

    Compensated absences  5,080,363  496,617  -  5,576,980  427,329 

    Annuities payable and other  3,539,873  109,937  173,046  3,476,764  525,180 
    Federal portion of 

      Perkins loan program 

 

1,519,151 
 

-  72,859  1,446,292  - 

              Total other liabilities  10,139,387  606,554  245,905  10,500,036  952,509 

              Total long-term liabilities  $ 255,885,156  $ 134,509,745  $ 8,234,043  $ 382,160,858  $  10,367,359 

           
Total long-term liabilities  $ 255,885,156      $ 382,160,858   

Current portion  8,855,482      10,367,359   

Noncurrent portion  $ 247,029,674      $ 371,793,499   

 

Note and Installment Purchase Agreements Payable 

In February 2015, the University entered into a lease-purchase agreement in the principal amount of 

$85,743 to purchase printing equipment. The lease has a fixed interest rate of 4.94% per annum and 

requires 48 monthly payments of $1,972. 

In November 2012, the University entered into a lease-purchase agreement in the principal amount 

of $169,771 to purchase golf equipment. The lease has a fixed interest rate of 1.98% per annum and 

requires 48 monthly payments of $3,679. The lease was paid in full January 2017.  

In July 2012, the University entered into a lease-purchase agreement in the principal amount of 

$512,008 to purchase golf carts. The lease had a fixed interest rate of 1.98% per annum and 

required 60 monthly payments of $7,353 and a balloon payment of $102,401. The lease was paid in 

full October 2016 and the University took ownership of the golf carts. 

In December 2005, the University entered into a general revenue note payable over 264 months in 

the amount of $18,253,776 at a fixed interest rate of 3.785% to finance Phase II of its Energy 

Service Agreement projects. 
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12. Long-Term Liabilities (continued) 

Required annual payments for the notes payable and the installment purchase agreements for the 

fiscal years ending June 30 are as follows:  

 Principal  Interest  Total 

      
2018 $      913,766  $    412,586  $   1,326,352 

2019 939,285  377,207  1,316,492 

2020 961,357  341,331  1,302,688 

2021 998,382  304,305  1,302,687 

2022 1,036,833  265,854  1,302,687 

2023-2027 5,814,811  698,627  6,513,438 

2028 644,213  7,131  651,344 

                  Total $ 11,308,647  $ 2,407,041  $ 13,715,688 

 

General Revenue Bonds Payable 

In June 2016, the University issued $113,130,000 of general revenue bonds (2016 Bonds), with an 

average coupon rate of 5.00% and a net original issue premium of $20,773,191. The proceeds are 

being utilized to fund the construction of a new 750 bed Southern Student Housing Complex, 

expansion of the Oakland Center, and conversion of existing student housing facilities into 

academic and administrative office space. The 2016 Bonds were issued with a final maturity of 

March 1, 2047. The pricing resulted in a 3.66% true interest cost. 

 

In October 2014, the University issued $28,060,000 of general revenue refunding bonds (2014 

Bonds), with an average coupon rate of 4.98% and a net original issue premium of $4,383,960. The 

2014 Bonds were issued with a final maturity date of March 1, 2039. The proceeds were utilized to 

refund the Series 2009 Taxable-Build America Bonds (2009 Bonds) which funded a portion of the 

Human Health Building and several infrastructure projects. The refunding of the 2009 Bonds was 

subject to a redemption price equal to 103% of the par value of Bonds redeemed, or $924,450 to be 

amortized over the term of the 2014 Bonds and is recorded as a deferred outflow. As a result of the 

refunding, the University will reduce its aggregate debt service payments over the remaining 24 

year period by approximately $3,016,000. The refunding will result in an economic gain of 

$2,251,000. The aggregate outstanding principal on the 2009 Bonds totaled $30,815,000, and was 

redeemed November 28, 2014 leaving a zero balance as of June 30, 2015. The pricing resulted in a 

3.56% true interest cost. 

 

In December 2014, the University partnered with UMB Bank to issue Certificates of Participation 

(2014 Certificates) for $14,225,000 at a net original issue premium of $1,729,013. The proceeds 

were used to finance the construction and installation of a combined heat and power cogeneration 

system at the central heating plant on the University’s campus. The 2014 Certificates consist of 4 

term certificates with maturity dates ranging from July 1, 2022 to July 1, 2031, yield rates ranging 

from 2.45% to 3.45%.  The pricing resulted in a 3.88% true interest cost. The debt service on the 

2014 Certificates will be funded by monthly lease payments the University will make to UMB 

Bank through July 2031. 

 

In June 2013, the University issued $57,860,000 of general revenue bonds (2013A Bonds), with an 

average coupon rate of 4.98% and a net original issue premium of $7,141,047. The proceeds were 

utilized to fund the construction of Oak View Hall; a facilities management building; a 1,240 space 

parking structure; road improvements; and an athletic and recreation complex. The 2013A Bonds 
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12. Long-Term Liabilities (continued) 

were issued with a final maturity of March 1, 2043. The pricing resulted in a 4.03% true interest 

cost. 

 

In June 2013, the University issued $23,290,000 of federally taxable general revenue refunding 

bonds (2013B Bonds), with an average coupon rate of 2.99%.  The proceeds were utilized to refund 

the Series 2004 general revenue refunding bonds (2004 Bonds) with an average coupon rate of 

5.12%. The advance refunding of the 2004 Bonds resulted in a deferral on early extinguishment of 

$1,134,224 that will be amortized over the term of the 2013B Bonds and is recorded as a deferred 

outflow. The 2013 Bonds were issued with a final maturity date of May 15, 2026. The pricing 

resulted in a 2.99% true interest cost. 

 

In August 2012, the University issued $44,155,000 of general revenue bonds (2012 Bonds), with 

an average coupon interest rate of 4.96% and a net original issue premium of $4,970,795. The 

proceeds were utilized to fund a portion of the Engineering Center. The 2012 Bonds were issued 

with a final maturity of March 1, 2042. The pricing resulted in a 4.08% true interest cost. 

 

In June 2008, the University issued $53,280,000 of general revenue refunding bonds (2008 Bonds) 

to refund the 2001 general revenue bonds (2001 Bonds).  The 2008 Bonds are variable-rate demand 

obligations with a maturity date of March 1, 2031.  In conjunction with this issue, the University 

terminated the related 2001 Swap at a termination value of $4,860,000 paid to the counterparty and 

reissued a new 2008 Swap synthetically fixing the rate on the full amount of the issue to 3.37%.  

The 2001 Swap termination cost has been deferred and will be amortized over the term of the 

refunding bonds and is recorded as a deferred outflow. The 2008 Bonds were issued with a final 

maturity date of March 1, 2031.  

 

In September 1998, on behalf of the Oakland University Foundation (Foundation), the Economic 

Development Corporation of the County of Oakland issued limited-obligation revenue variable-rate 

demand bonds in the amount of $4,600,000 to finance the R&S Sharf golf course project.  These 

bonds bear interest at a variable or fixed rate, as determined from time to time in accordance with 

the indenture (the variable rates as of June 30, 2016 and 2015 were 0.42% and 0.08%, respectively; 

the maximum variable rate is 12%).  The bonds mature on September 1, 2023 subject to optional 

early redemption.  Within this bond offering, the Foundation executed a Loan Agreement, which 

obligated it to make all payments in connection with this bond financing including interest, 

principal, remarketing fees, and letter of credit fees.  On February 1, 2006, the University Board 

and the Foundation Board of Directors agreed to transfer Foundation assets and liabilities to the 

University. As a result, this Foundation loan was transferred to the University in the amount of 

$4,600,000.   
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12. Long-Term Liabilities (continued) 

The following table summarizes debt service requirements for the outstanding bonds and 

certificates payable as of June 30, 2017:  

 

Principal  Interest  

Hedging 

Derivative, 

Net  Total 

        

2018 $     6,390,000  $   13,277,770  $   1,280,056  $   20,947,826 

2019 8,510,000  13,118,020  1,232,273  22,860,293 

2020 8,960,000  12,832,545  1,182,562  22,975,107 

2021 9,420,000  12,525,824  1,130,777  23,076,601 

2022 9,905,000  12,200,297  1,076,823  23,182,120 

2023-2027 61,870,000  54,850,280  4,466,887  121,187,167 

2028-2032 68,455,000  43,334,555  1,436,808  113,226,363 

2033-2037 50,175,000  31,238,750  -   81,413,750 

2038-2042 57,815,000  17,678,750  -   75,493,750 

2043-2047 36,060,000  5,196,000  -   41,256,000 

 317,560,000  $ 216,252,791  $ 11,806,186  $ 545,618,977 

Unamortized premium 33,275,428       

 $ 350,835,428       

 

Other Liabilities 

Accrued compensated absences include accrued vacation and sick pay for University employees. 

 

Charitable gift annuities are arrangements in which donors contribute assets to the University in 

exchange for a promise by the University to pay a fixed amount for a specified period of time 

(typically for the life of the donor or other beneficiary). Annuities payable are established based on 

the present value of the estimated annuity payouts over the life expectancy of the donor or other 

beneficiary.  

 

In September 2013, the University received a charitable gift annuity (CGA) totaling $7.0 million as 

a result of realizing a donor’s bequest. Based on the life expectancy of the annuitant at the time the 

CGA was received, the University’s obligation, or present value liability, of the annuity payments 

approximated $3.7 million. As of June 30, 2017, the annuity payable was approximately $2.8 

million. 
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13. Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions 

Plan Description 

In addition to the employee benefits discussed in Note 14, the University provides postemployment 

healthcare benefits to eligible University retirees and their spouses as part of a single-employer 

defined benefit plan.  The plan is administered by the University.  Substantially all University 

employees may become eligible for coverage if they meet retirement eligibility requirements.  The 

net periodic costs are expensed as employees render the services necessary to earn the 

postemployment benefits.  In general, retirees at least 62 years of age with 15 years of service who 

were hired before July 1, 2005, depending on the employee group, are eligible for medical benefits 

in accordance with various labor agreements or within the provisions of University policy.  

Employees with 25 years of service are eligible for retirement at any age.  Except for certain prior 

retirees, the University shares the cost of coverage with retirees, charging the retirees a contribution 

equal to the excess of the prevailing premium cost of coverage over a stipulated University subsidy 

amount.  Postemployment healthcare benefits are currently provided to 262 retirees and spouses.  

Certain employees hired after July 1, 2005, depending on the employee group, may be eligible for 

participation in the University’s postemployment health care benefits as “access only” for retirees 

and spouses, at retiree rates, paid in full by the retiree. 

 

Funding Policy 

The contribution requirements of plan members and the University are established in accordance 

with various labor agreements or within the provisions of University policy.  The required 

contribution is based on projected pay-as-you-go financing requirements.  For the year ended 

June 30, 2017, the University and plan members receiving benefits contributed $1,831,058 and 

$1,071,051, respectively, to the plan.  Approximately 63% of total premiums were paid by the 

University with the remaining 37% paid by plan members.  Required contributions for plan 

members ranged from $27 to $1,129 per month for retiree-only coverage, and from $64 to $2,710 

per month for retiree and spouse coverage. 

 

For the year ended June 30, 2016, the University and plan members receiving benefits contributed 

$1,663,824 and $964,231, respectively, to the plan.  Approximately 63% of total premiums were 

paid by the University with the remaining 37% paid by plan members.  Required contributions for 

plan members ranged from $26 to $1,051 per month for retiree-only coverage, and from $61 to 

$2,523 per month for retiree and spouse coverage. 
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13. Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions (continued) 

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation 

The University’s annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost is calculated based on the 

annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in 

accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting 

by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions.  The ARC represents a level of 

funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover the normal cost each year and 

amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed 30 years.   

 

The components of the University’s annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually 

contributed to the plan, and changes in the University’s net OPEB obligation are summarized 

below for the years ended June 30, 2017 and the two preceding years.  The amounts are based on 

the June 30, 2016 actuarial valuation. 

 
 2017  2016  2015 

 

Annual Required Contribution (ARC) 
 

$  4,598,694 

  

$   4,323,625 

  

$   3,732,363 

Interest on net OPEB obligation 783,716  655,150  545,004 

Adjustment to ARC (1,358,768)  (1,135,866)  (954,903) 

    Annual OPEB cost (expense) 4,023,642  3,842,909  3,322,464 

Contributions made (1,831,058)  (1,663,824)  (1,614,860) 

Increase in net OPEB obligation 2,192,584  2,179,085  1,707,604 

Net OPEB obligation – beginning of year 13,283,315  11,104,230  9,396,626 

Net OPEB obligation – end of year $ 15,475,899  $ 13,283,315  $ 11,104,230 

 

The University’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, 

and the net OPEB obligation for 2017 and the two preceding years were as follows: 

 

  

 

Year 

Ended 

June 30 

Annual 

OPEB 

Cost 

Percentage 

of Annual 

OPEB Cost 

Contributed 

Net 

OPEB 

Obligation 

 

  

2017 

 

$ 4,023,642 

 

45.5% 

 

$ 15,475,899 

 

  2016 

2015 

$ 3,842,909 

$ 3,322,464 

43.3% 

48.6% 

$ 13,283,315 

$ 11,104,230 
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13. Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions (continued) 

Funded Status and Funding Progress 

Other postemployment health care benefits are not advance-funded on an actuarially determined 

basis but are financed on a pay-as-you-go basis.  The University has decided that future benefits 

will not be prefunded; however, the University has designated assets to meet future obligations 

through the creation of a Board-approved, quasi-endowment valued at approximately $22.8 million, 

earnings from which will be used to offset annual postemployment contributions.  The University’s 

contribution to the plan for the year ended June 30, 2017 and the two preceding years were 

$1,831,058, $1,663,824, and $1,614,860, respectively.  The funded status of the plan as of the most 

recent actuarial valuation date is as follows: 

 

 

The information presented in this schedule is intended to approximate the funding progress of the 

plan based on the use of the Unit Credit Actuarial Cost Method of valuation.  The unfunded 

actuarial accrued liability totaled $39.9 million as of June 30, 2017.  The actuarial valuation is 

completed on a biannual basis with the last one as of June 30, 2016.  The unfunded actuarial 

accrued liability is being amortized over a period of thirty years from the July 1, 2007 valuation 

date in level dollar payments.  Gains and losses are amortized over a period of 15 years from the 

valuation date. 

 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 

The actuary chose the Unit Credit Actuarial Cost Method which determines, in a systematic way, 

the incidence of plan sponsor contributions required to provide plan benefits.  It also determines 

how actuarial gains and losses are recognized in other postemployment benefit costs.  These gains 

and losses result from the difference between the actual experience under the plan and the 

experience by the actuarial assumptions.  Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of 

reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of events far into the future.  Actuarially 

determined results are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared to expectations 

and new estimates are made in the future. 

 

  

Schedule of Funding Progress 

Oakland University Retired Employees Healthcare Plan 

Actuarial 

Valuation 

Date  

as of 

Actuarial 

Value of 

Assets 

Actuarial 

Accrued 

Liability 

(AAL) 

Unfunded 

AAL 

(UAAL) 

Funded 

Ratio 

Covered 

Payroll 

UAAL as a 

Percentage 

of Covered 

Payroll 

 

6/30/2017 

 

$   - 

 

$ 39,911,913 

 

$ 39,911,913 

 

0.00% 

 

$ 120,517,399 

 

33.1% 

6/30/2016 

6/30/2015 

$   - 

$   - 

$ 38,362,084 

$ 35,520,230 

$ 38,362,084 

$ 35,520,230 

0.00% 

0.00% 

$ 112,272,440 

$ 105,730,414 

34.2% 

33.6% 
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13. Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions (continued) 

Actuarial assumptions included a discount rate of 5.9%, various mortality, turnover and healthcare 

cost trend rates, an assumption that 80% of subsidized current employees and 50% of access only 

current employees eligible for medical coverage will elect medical coverage, and an assumption 

that 70% of future retirees that take coverage elect family coverage.  The University will review its 

assumptions on a bi-annual basis and make modifications to the assumptions based on current rates 

and trends when it is appropriate to do so.  The University believes that the assumptions utilized in 

recording its obligations for the plan are reasonable based on its experience.  

 

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan 

as understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the 

time of valuation and the historical pattern of sharing benefit costs between the employer and plan 

members to that point. 

 

14. Employee Benefits 

The University has contributory, defined-contribution retirement plans for all qualified employees.  

The plans consist of employee-owned retirement contracts funded on a current basis by employer 

contributions.  Participants may elect to contribute additional amounts to the plan within specified 

limits.  The plans are primarily administered by Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association – 

College Retirement Equities Fund (TIAA-CREF) and Fidelity Investments.  Contributions by the 

University for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016 were $17,018,060 and $16,065,648, 

respectively. 

The University also maintains a noncontributory, defined-benefit retirement plan, which is not 

open to new participants.  The plan is administered by TIAA-CREF.   At January 1, 2017, the date 

of the most recent actuarial valuation, the plan had a total liability of approximately $53,000 and 

was over funded by approximately $75,000. 

The University provides benefits to eligible employees for unused sick days upon retirement and 

unused vacation days upon termination.  This liability is accounted for as part of accrued 

compensated absences. 

The University is self-insured for workers’ compensation and unemployment compensation.  

Liabilities for claims incurred but not reported under these self-insurance programs have been 

established. 

Changes in the self-insured employee benefit liabilities during 2017, 2016, and 2014 were 

considered current and are as follows: 

 2017  2016  2015 

 

Balance, beginning of year 
 

$  316,862 

  

$    580,628 

  

$   552,638 

Claims incurred and changes in estimates 262,156  6,432  532,686 

Claim payments (281,403)  (270,198)  (504,696) 

Balance, end of year $  297,615  $    316,862  $   580,628 
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15. Liability and Property Insurance 

The University is one of 11 Michigan universities participating in the Michigan Universities Self-

Insurance Corporation (M.U.S.I.C.) which provides insurance coverage for errors and omissions 

liability, commercial general liability, property loss, automobile liability, and automobile physical 

damage coverage.  M.U.S.I.C. provides coverage for claims in excess of agreed-upon deductibles. 

Loss coverages, except for the automobile physical damage program, are structured on a three-

layer basis with each member retaining a portion of its losses, M.U.S.I.C. covering the second 

layer, and commercial carriers covering the third.  Automobile physical damage coverage is 

structured on a two-layer basis with no excess coverage from a commercial carrier.  Commercial 

general liability and property coverage are provided on an occurrence basis.  Errors and omissions 

coverage is provided on a claims-made basis. The payments made to M.U.S.I.C. and premiums to 

excess carriers reflect the claims experience of each university. 

16. Contingencies and Commitments  

In the normal course of its activities, the University is a party in various legal actions.  Although 

some actions have been brought for large amounts, the University has not experienced any 

significant losses or costs.  The University and its legal counsel are of the opinion that the outcome 

of asserted and unasserted claims outstanding will not have a material effect on the financial 

statements. 

The University is the guarantor on certain faculty and staff residence mortgages.  As of June 30, 

2017, the amount subject to guarantee by the University was $2,021,493. 

The estimated costs to complete construction projects in progress is $110.5 million as of June 30, 

2017, due in large part to the ongoing construction costs of the new Southern Student Housing 

Complex in the amount of $45.5 million, expansion of the Oakland Center for $42.5 million, 

conversion of Anibal and Fitzgerald Halls into academic and administrative office space for $5.9 

million, parking expansion initiative for $4.7 million, infrastructure renovations at Vandenberg 

Hall for $4.5 million, architectural and engineering services for the expansion of Elliott Hall for 

$1.3 million, and various campus enhancement projects totaling $6.1 million.  The Southern 

Student Housing Complex will be funded from proceeds from the 2016 Bonds. The Oakland 

Center expansion and conversion of the Anibal and Fitzgerald Halls will be funded from the 2016 

Bonds. The parking expansion project and architectural and engineering services for the Elliott 

Hall expansion and other campus enhancements are funded from University resources. 

17. Expenditures by Natural Classification  

Operating expenses by natural classification for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016 are 

summarized as follows: 

 2017  2016 

    

Employee compensation and benefits $ 220,527,307  $ 209,266,474 

Supplies and other services 72,802,240  72,615,101 

Student aid 10,421,060  12,794,769 

Depreciation 22,869,006  22,013,804 

                Total $ 326,619,613  $ 316,690,148 
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18. Cash Flow Statement  

The table below details the reconciliation of the net operating loss to net cash used by operating 

activities: 

 2017  2016 

    

Operating loss $ (63,167,230)  $ (62,712,617) 

Adjustments to reconcile net operating loss 

  to net cash used by operating activities 

   

Depreciation expense 22,869,006  22,013,804 

Changes in assets and liabilities:    

Accounts receivable, net 1,192,052  452,799 

Inventories (15,567)  (374,077) 

Deposits and prepaid expense (5,115)  (243,849) 

Student loans receivable 40,258  74,085 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 2,384,320  4,175,863 

Accrued payroll 1,094,312  1,590,425 

Compensated absences 347,427  496,617 

Unearned revenue 1,801,972  8,707,797 

Deposits 391,239  (3,828) 

Federal portion of student loan program 112,893  (72,859) 

Other postemployment benefits 2,192,584  2,179,085 

Net cash used by operating activities $ (30,761,849)  $ (23,716,755) 

19. Related-Party Transactions 

The Oakland University Foundation (Foundation) is a related party of the University. 

Foundation net assets as of June 30, 2017 were as follows: 

Assets $ 199,279  

Net assets $ 199,279  

 

The assets remaining are endowment funds.  The June 30, 2017 University financial statements do 

not include the Foundation’s assets or activity. 

 




